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To, 
The Members, 

BOARD'S REPORT 

Your Directors are pleased to present the 3 rd Annual Report and the Audited 
financial Statements of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited (the 'Company or 
NICCL') for the year ended March 31 , 2019. 

NICCL was incorporated as a public company on December 2, 2016 at Ahmedabad 
under the Companies Act, 2013. NICCL is a step-down subsidiary of National Stock 
Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE), wherein 100% of its share capital is held by NSE 
Clearing Limited (NCL) formerly known as National Securities Clearing Corporation 
Limited (NSCCL}, a subsidiary of NSE. The Company has been incorporated to carry 
on the business inter-alia of setting up and operating a clearing corporation as a unit 
in an International Financial Service Centre in any SEZ as approved by the 
Government of India or anywhere globally to carry on the business of clearing and 
settlement of any kind, including physical and cash settlement, of securities. 

NICCL has formulated the Rules, Regulations and Byelaws which are consistent with 
the Principles for Financial Market Infrastructures (PFMls) issued by the Committee 
on Payment and Settlement Systems (CPSS) and International Organisation of 
Securities Commissions (IOSCO). 

NICCL commenced its operations as a Clearing Corporation in the GIFT City, 
Gandhinagar, Gujarat, India with effect from June 5, 2017 after receiving approval 
from SEBI. The required annual renewal from SEBI for the current year (2019-20) is 
awaited. 

NICCL has put in place a robust and comprehensive Risk Management System. It 
clears and settles trades executed on NSE IFSC Ltd , a subsidiary of National Stock 
Exchange. 

NICCL has the following types of clearing membership - Professional Clearing 
Member, Trading Cum Clearing Member and Trading Cum Self Clearing Member. 
The various asset classes that are cleared and settled by NICCL are: 
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Category 

Equity Derivatives 

Single Stock 
Derivatives 

Currency 
Derivatives 

Commodity 
Derivatives 
(Non Agri) 

Instrument 
Type 

Futures & 
Options 

Futures & 
Options 

Futures & 
Options 

Futures 

Continuation Sheet 

Key Features 

• Trading Hours: 

Session 1 - 08:00 17:00 

Session 2 - 17:30 - 23:30 

• Currency of Trade: US Dollars 

·Contract Calendar: Weekly, Monthly, 

Quarterly expiries 

•Margining: SPAN Based 

• Settlement: Cash Settled 

•Daily Settlement: T +1 Day 

Till March 31 , 2019, NICCL had 6 clearing members (3 trading cum Clearing 
Members and 3 Trading cum Self Clearing Members). Clearing Banks are the key 
link between clearing members and NICCL for funds settlement. Members are 
required to maintain and operate clearing account with any one of the four clearing 
banks empanelled with NICCL. 

1. Initiatives and major events during the year ended March 31, 2019 

• SEBI granted Qualifying Central Counterparty (QCCP) status to NICCL. 
• NICCL applied to European Securities Market Authority for recognition as a 

third country CCP under the European Market Infrastructure Regulation 
(EMIR). The decision of ESMA is awaited. 

• A "Segregated Nominee Account Structure" has been put in place in the GIFT 
IFSC after SEBI approval. Under this structure, eligible Segregated Nominee 
Account Providers can permit their clients to access the markets in the IFSC 
through trading and clearing members without any additional due diligence 
requirements, easing the access to the IFSC markets. 

• NICCL submitted a proposal to SEBI to offer an Individually Segregated 
Collateral Facility to its clearing members. Under the proposed facility, the 
clients of the clearing members can provide collateral directly to NICCL which 
will only be utilized towards the obligation of such clients. The proposed 
facility will help bring in clients who do not wish to take exposure against the 
clearing members operating in the IFSC and is in line with the best practices 
in the global CCPs. Approval from SEBI is awaited . 

• NICCL received approval from SEBI to open account with Euroclear Bank for 
acceptance of eligible foreign securities as collateral. Admission process is in 
progress. 
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Continuation Sheet 

• NICCL prescribed the procedure for Clearing and settlement of Masala Bonds 
(Debt Securities). 

• NICCL started providing margin benefits for offsetting position in various 
products. 

• NICCL successfully conducted Mock Trading sessions in 2018-19 from its 
BCP I DR site at Chennai. 

• NICCL introduced enhanced One Time Password (OTP) based Two-Factor 
Authentication (2FA) mechanism for various applications. 

2. Operations 

The total value of settlement for 2018-19 was US $ 5.57 million. The highest 
monthly settlement was US $ 8,49,483 for December 2018. As on March 31 , 
2019, the Core Settlement Guarantee Fund stood at US $ 11,33,509. The details 
of operations for 2018-19 are as given in the table below: 

Month No. of Turnover MTM Final Premium Exercise Total 
Contrac • Settlement Settlement Settlement Settlement Settlement 
ts (in Mn$) (in$) (in$) (in$) (in$) (in$) 
Traded 

April-18 158060 1658.38 573938.75 1621 .20 - - 574873.65 

May-18 267375 2859.76 472173.75 3110.90 11053.70 1735.20 473977.30 

Jun-18 540765 5857.56 671415.00 13460.55 57591 .90 956.90 689911.45 

Jul-18 799947 8860.18 193247.20 442.40 94304.60 26581 .70 280494.65 

Aug-18 781028 9059.65 306481 .00 1503.80 68947.55 13672.00 368371.40 

Sept-18 812011 9273.00 289327.40 4617.85 106014.05 11889.85 345467.00 

Oct-18 659355 7397.36 459442.60 104453.85 132838.00 65416.80 496702.10 

Nov-18 541956 6603.43 366318.95 8667.10 92677.55 105091 .20 457668.35 

Dec-18 562147 6868.77 760814. 75 14278.55 173627.80 64533.60 849483.00 

Jan-19 722644 9118.95 287118.10 36778.20 122743.00 16445.85 362829.55 

Feb-19 581891 7453.80 201091 .20 6388.00 112987.15 32494.45 252792.15 

Mar-19 470804 6521 .90 289757.40 70992.30 161212.15 143144.85 418824.95 

*Turnover includes value of futures and notional value of options. 
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3. Financials 

Contmua11on Sheet 

3.1. The financial results for the year ended on March 31 , 2019 are summarized 

hereunder: 

(Rs. in 'lakhs') 
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 

Income 12.94 -
Expenditure 653.20 894.26 
ProfiU(Loss) before tax (640.26) (894.26) 
Add/(Less) provision for tax (including deferred tax) - -
ProfiU(Loss) after tax (640.26) (894.26) 
Add/ (Less): Items that will not be reclassified to 325.97 32.97 
profit or loss 
Add/(less): Income-tax relating to items that will not - -
be reclassified to profit or loss 
Total comorehensive income (314.29) (861.29) 
ProfiU(Loss) bouQht forward from previous year (1838.33) (249.07) 
Less: Contribution to core SGF (50.31) (689.54) 
Less: Share issue expenses (0.50) (38.43) 
Balance carried to Balance Sheet (2203.43) (1838.33) 

3.2. Dividend 

In view of the loss incurred by the Company for the year under review, the Board 
of Directors did not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2018-19. 

3.3. Transfer to Reserves 

In view of the loss, no amount was available for transferring to General Reserves 
for the year 2018-19. 

3.4. Loans, Guarantees and Investments Under Section 186 of the 

Companies Act , 2013 

During the period under review, the Company did not grant any loan to any 
person or body corporate, and did not provide any guarantee or security in 
connection with a loan to any person or body corporate. Further, the Company 
did not make any investmenU acquisition in terms of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 2018-19. 
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3.5. Contracts or Arrangements with Related parties 

Continuation Sheet 

All the related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the 
ordinary course of business and were at arm's length basis. Transactions with 
related parties were conducted in a transparent manner, aligned fully with the 
interests of the Company and its Stakeholders. The particulars of contracts or 
arrangements with related parties form part of the financial statements. 

3.6. Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls 

As regards internal financial controls in the Company, the noteworthy feature of 
its operations is the high degree of automation in the key areas of its operations 
and processes. All the processes are also well documented with comprehensive 
and well defined Standard Operating Procedures (SoPs) which inter-alia include 
the financial controls in the form of maker-checker, strict adherence to financial 
delegation given by the Board at various levels, system controls, information 
security controls as well as role-based access controls. Further, these controls 
are periodically reviewed while introducing new processes/changes in processes, 
changes in the systems, and changes in personnel handling the activities. These 
controls are also independently reviewed by the internal auditors whereby they 
specifically review the controls to establish their adequacy and effectiveness. The 
Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors review the compliances by the 
Company with respect to applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

3. 7. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies 

The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate Company. 

3.8. Deposits 

The Company has not invited , accepted or renewed any deposits within the 
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the requirement 
to furnish details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 does not apply to the company. 

3.9. Risk Management 

The Company has an enterprise-wide risk assessment and review mechanism 
which inter alia consists of risk identification, assessment and categorisation of 
risks taking into account the impact and likelihood of risks and putting in place 
adequate controls and mitigation plans which has helped in reducing the overall 
risk exposure for the Company and also the impact thereof. 

In this direction, the Company has a Risk Management Committee, a 
subcommittee of the Board , which meets periodically to review the efficacy and 
adequacy of the Company's risk management exercise and the controls and 
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Continuation Sheet 

mitigation plans put in place to reduce the overall impact of the various inherent 
risks. 

The Risk Management Committee has formulated risk management policy and 
monitors its implementation. 

3.10. Material Changes and Commitments 

There were no material changes and commitments during the reporting year that 
adversely affected the financial position of the Company. 

The Company received approval from SEBI vide its letter dated May 23, 2018, 
granting recognition as a Clearing Corporation for a period of one year effective 
from May 29, 2018. The Company commenced its operations as a Clearing 
Corporation with effect from June 5, 2017. 

3.11. Significant Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or 

Tribunals Impacting the Company 

During the year under review, there were no significant or material orders passed 
by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact the status of the 
Company as a going concern. 

3.12. Explanations or Comments on the Auditor's Report 

As there was no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made 
by the Statutory Auditors, appointed under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 
2013, in their report, there was no need for explanations or comments by the 
Board. The report of Statutory Auditor forms part of the financial statements. 

3.13. Share Capital 

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 100 crore divided into 10 
crore equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 

During the year under review, the paid-up share capital of the company was 
increased to Rs. 75 crore divided into 7.5 crore equity shares of Rs. 1 O each 
through allotment of 50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at par to NSE 
Clearing Limited, on rights basis. 

4. Change in Registered Office 

During the year under review, the registered office of the Company was shifted from 
Unit no. 46 & 47, GIFT Aspire One Business Centre, 1st floor, Block-12, Road1-D, 
Zone-1 , G IFT-SEZ Gandhinagar, Gujarat-382355 to Unit-1202, brigade 
international financial center, 12th floor, Block-14, Road 1C, Zone-1, GIFT SEZ, 
GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar Gujarat - 382355, with effect from October 29, 2018. 
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5. Extract of the Annual Return 

Continuation Sheet 

In terms of MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, the IFSC Public Companies are 
exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 92 (3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and hence the Company is not required to provide an extract of Annual 
Return which forms part of the Board's report. 

6. Human Resources 

The Company considers its employees as the most valuable resource and ensures 
strategic alignment of Human Resource practices to business priorities and 
objectives. As on March 31, 2019, the Company had a dedicated human capital of 9 
employees which included 2 employees on deputation from NSE and 4 employees 
on deputation from NSE Clearing Limited. 

None of the employees of the Company is drawing remuneration in excess of the 
limits as specified in sub-rule (2) of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

6.1 . Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 

The disclosures required to be given under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 are provided in the 
following table: 

1 Number of complaints of sexual harassment NIL 
received during the year ended March 31, 2019 

2 Number of complaints disposed off during the Not applicable 
year ended March 31, 2019 

3 Number of cases pending for more than ninety Not applicable 
days 

4 Number of workshops or awareness programs Awareness 
against sexual harassment carried out program was done 

for all employees 
5 Nature of action taken by the employer Not applicable 

Pursuant to the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Act, 2018 effective from 
31st July, 2018, NICCL has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of 
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
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7. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

7.1. Directors: 

Continuation Sheet 

Mr. Natarajan Ramasamy is Director of the Company since incorporation. Mr. 
Mukesh Agarwal is Director and Prof. Samir K Barua is the Independent Director 
and Chairman of the Board of the Company. 

7 .2. Declaration of Independence 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Director are as per 
schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. Prof. Samir Barua, Independent 
Director has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of Independence 
as provided in the sub section(6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 201 3 and 
there have been no changes in the circumstances which may affect his status as 
Independent Director during the year. 

7.3. Directors Retiring by Rotation 

Pursuant to the MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, the IFSC Public 
Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 152 (6) 
& (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence none of the Directors of the 
Company shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

7 .4. Key Managerial Personnel 

Mr. Vivek Singhvi, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Nitin Bhadre, Chief Financial 
Officer and Mr. Chirag S Nagda, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company, pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Mr. Bhavesh Shah resigned as the Chief Financial Officer, with effect from 
October 22, 2018. Further, Mr. Aniket Bhanu resigned as the Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company with effect from January 21 , 2019. The Board placed on 
record its appreciation for the valuable contribution made by them to the 
functioning and development of the Company. 

Mr. Nitin Bhadre was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer, with effect from 
October 23, 2018. Mr. Vivek Singhvi was appointed as the Chief Executive 
Officer, with effect from January 22, 2019. 
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8. NICCL Board 

8.1. Board Evaluation 

Continuation Sheet 

In terms of the MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, the IFSC Public 
Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and hence the Company is not required to constitute 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee to discharge the functions mandated 
under the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Despite the above, NICCL carried out an evaluation of the Board of Directors. 
The evaluation was done on the basis of a questionnaire with the aim to evaluate 
the performance of the Board and of individual directors. The performance of the 
Board and individual Directors was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs from 
each Director. The criteria for performance evaluation of the Board included 
board composition, shared vision and strategy, the effectiveness of Board 
processes, and adequacy of information to the Board. The criteria for 
performance evaluation of the individual Directors included acting independently 
and in the best interests of the Company, and contributing to Board meetings by 
devoting sufficient time to understand the issues under discussion. The Chairman 
of the Board was also evaluated on the key aspects of the role. 

8.2. Number of Board Meetings 

During the financial year 2018-19, 5 (five) Board Meetings were convened and 
held. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013. Board Meetings were conducted on April 23, 
2018, June 21 , 2018, July 25, 2018, October 22, 2018, and January 21 , 2019. 
The details of the attendance of the directors at the meetings held on the above 
dates are given in the table hereunder: 

Name Number of meetings held Number of 
during membership meetings attended 

Mr. Natarajan Ramasamy 5 5 

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal 5 5 
Prof. Samir K Barua 5 5 
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8.3. Audit Committee 

Continuation Sheet 

In terms of the MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, the IFSC Public 
Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and hence the Company is not required to constitute 
Audit Committee to discharge the functions mandated under the provisions of 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

8.4. Company's Policy on Directors' Appointment and Remuneration 
including Criteria for determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes, 
Independence of Directors 

The provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to policy on 
Directors' appointment and remuneration including the criteria for determining 
qualifiCations, positive atttibutes, independence of a Director and other matters 
are not applicable to the Company as per the exemption notification no. G.S.R. 
08(E) dated January 4, 2017. 

During the year under review, none of the Non-Executive Directors was drawing 
remuneration from the Company. The sitting fees were paid to the Independent 
Director and the same was in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder. 

8.5. Directors' Responsibility Statement 

Your Directors confirm that: 

i. The applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures, if any, in the preparation of the 
annual accounts; 

ii. The Directors selected accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the year 
i.e., 31 51 March, 2019 and of the losses of the Company for that period;. 

iii. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
Adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. The Directors have ensured that the annual accounts are prepared on a going 
concern basis; 

v. The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively; and 
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Continuatwn Sheet 

vi. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provision of all applicable laws and such systems are adequate and were 
operating effectively. 

9. Statutory Auditors 

M/s. Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, were appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 1st Annual General Meeting held on 
September 12, 2017 for a period of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of 1st 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 5th Annual General Meeting. The 
requirement of seeking ratification of the members for the continuance of their 
appointment has been withdrawn consequent upon the changes made by the 
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 07, 2018. Hence the 
resolution seeking ratification of the members for their appointment is not being 
placed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

M/s. Haribhakti & Co. LLP, have confirmed that, their appointment, if made, 
would be in accordance with section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules made thereunder and that they are not disqualified in terms of section 141 
of the Act. 

10. Secretarial Audit 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 
Company appointed M/s Umesh Ved & Associates, Company Secretaries to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit of your Company for the Financial Year 2018-19. 
The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure 1. The report 
does not contain any qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks. 

11. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 
Foreign Exchange Earnings/Outgo 

11.1. The Company has always been conscious of the need to conserve 
energy. The Company is continuously identifying the area where energy 
can be saved and appropriate measures have been taken for optimizing 
energy conservation. 

11.2. General Lighting System 

LED lights have been used for office area lighting in place of conventional CFL 
type lights. LED lights consume less energy and have more longevity and 
reliability than that of conventional CFL lights. By using LED lights, around 600 
units of electricity were saved last year. 
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11.2.1. Occupancy Sensor: 

Continuation Sheet 

Occupancy sensors have been installed so that lights are switched off 
automatically when the area is not in use. This has also reduced the energy 
consumption substantially towards lighting. 

11.2.2. Energy Conservative measures taken up for the building by GIFT 
City Limited 

District Cooling System (DCS): 

The office air conditioning is being fed from the GIFT's District Cooling System 
with state of the art technology with Thermal Energy Storage System. This has 
resulted in the reduction of electricity consumption towards the operation of Air­
Conditioning System in NSE's office area by around 3000 Tr-Hr per year as 
compared to conventional AC System. 

11.3. Technology Absorption: 

The Company uses the latest technologies for its operations. The Company has 
not imported any technology during the year under review. 

11.4. Foreign Exchange earnings/outgo: 

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year ended March 31 , 2019. 
However, the foreign exchange inflow during the said year was USO 7,05,915.57 
received towards equity contribution from Holding company NSE Clearing Limited 
(Formerly known as National Securities Clearing Corporation Limited). 
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Continuation Sheet 

The Directors are grateful for the support and co-operation extended by NSE 
Clearing Limited and its group companies and look forward to their continued 
support and co-operation. The Directors would like to place on record their deep 
appreciation of the contribution made by the employees at all levels to the 
establishment and development of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prof. Samir K Barua 
Chairman 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 24, 2019 
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OS UMESH VED & ASSOCIATES 
Compt;tny Secretaries 

304, Shoppers Plaza.v, Opp. Municipal Market, C. G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009. 
Telefax: (0) +917926464153, 48904153 •Mobile +919825035998 

Email : info@umeshvedcs.com, umeshvedcs.office@a1rtelmail.rn • Website : www.umeshvedcs.com 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 3tST 11-lARCH, 2019 

f Purswwt to section 204(1) ofthc Companie_. Act, 2013 and rule No.9 ol'thc Compa11ics 
(Appoliume11/ a11d Rem1111eration Personnel) Rules, 2014/ 

'f'o) 

The Membe<-s, 
NSE IFSC CLt:ARING CORPORATION LIMITED, 
Unit-1202, Brigade International Financial Centre 12th Floor, 

l.llock· I ·1, Road IC, Zone- I, 

GIF'TSez Gift City. 
Gandhinagar GJ 382355 

\Ve have con<lucted chc secretarial au<lit o f the co1npliance o f applicabJc st:Hutory pcovision~!lnd rhe 
adhccence co good corporate practice~ by NSE l FSC CLEARING CORPORATION LlMffED(hcreinaftcr 

c:llled 1hc Co1np:i.ny).Secrernrml Audit \Ya$ conducted 111 a manner thnt provided us n re-aFon:1ble Uasis for 
('Va1uaung the: co11Jurale conducts/stattnory co1nplianccs and expressing our opinion t.hcr~on. 

Based on our '"~erificauon or che Company's booki;:, papers1 1n1nute books. fonns and returns ftled and 
other records mmnc.incd by Lhe company and also the information provided by the Company, its oflicers. 

agems and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audn. \IV'e hereby ccpon Lhat in our 

opinjon. the co1npan>' has, during the audi1 yc:ir covering the ye:i r ended on 31'1t-.iarch, 20 19 c;o1npli~J w-i1h 
Lil<" "l4HUtory provision~ lislcd hereunder and also that lhe Cornpany has proper Board procc~sc-s and 
cornpltance-mcchnnisn1 in place to the extent, in the rnanne;:1: and subject LO the reporting 1nad<: hereinafter: 

We have exanuned rhc books, papers, minute books, forms and rcmrns filed and other records maint:ained 

by the Company for the year ended o n 31• /\larch. 20·19 according to the provisions of: 

(i) '!'he Companjes Act, 2013 (the Acr) and tl1e rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Sernrities Contr.>cts (Regulation) J\ct, l 956 ('SCRA ')and the mies made thereunder; 

(iii) -i·hc: l)t;:po$iLories t\ct. 1996 ant.l lhe Rcgulacion~ :·1nd Bye-la\VS fr<'lm<.'d 1hereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exd1arrgc !\fanagcmcn t /\ct, 1999 and the rules and regulations 1mde <hereunder to the cxt<'nL of 
Foreign Uirect InvestfftCnt, Overseas Direct luvc..su·oc11( and E.xternnl CvnUl)ercial Boi.-ro,vings; (Not 

Applicable to the Company dutitig the Audit Year) 

(v) Securmes Contracls (Regubuon) (Stock Fxchangcs and CleacingCorporations) Regulations, 2012 
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Continuation Sheet Umesh Ved & Associates 

(' ·i) 111c following Regulacions and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange lloard of 1 ndia 
Act, 19!>2 ('SEBI 1\cc'):-

(n) The Sccuricics and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition or Shares and Tak(:overs) 
Reguh1tions. 20 11: (Not Applicable to·the Company during th e Aud it Year) 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition o f Insider Trading) Regulnions, 1992/The 

Securities and Hxchaoge Board of ludia (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 20 I S;(Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Year) 

(c) Tb(· Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009: (Not Applicable to the Company dudng the Audit Year) 

(d) '"n 1c Securities nnd Exchange Board of India (Share Based En1pluyce Bt:11efi1!i) RcgulaLion~, 2014~ 

(Not Applicable to the Comp any during the Audit Year) 

(e) 111c Sccucicics and Exchange Board o f India (h suc and Listing of Debt Securities) lkgulations, 2008: 
(No1 Applicable to tbe Company during the Audjc Year) 

(t) l11e Securities and E.~change Board of India (Regisirars to an Issue and Share Transfer ,\gems) 
ltcgulations, 1993 regarding the Companies r\ cL aud dealing with d icnt; (Not Applicable lO the 
Company d uring the Audit Ycat) 

(g) The Securi1jes and Exchange Board o f India (Od isring of Equity Shares) Rcguladons, 20()9; (N ot 

Applicable to the Company during lhe Audit Year)'and 

(h) The Sccumi<·s and Exchange Board of ln(lia (l:lu)'hack of Securities) Regulations, 1998: (Not 

Applicable to 1he Company during the Audit Year) 

(vii) Thc Company has iden tified and confirmed the following laws, as being spccifica.lly applicable '" 1.hc 

Company. 

I. The Sccuriti<'ll Contract (Regulations) Act. 1956 
2. The Securities and Exchange Board o f lndia ;\ ct, 1992 

3. -1 he Sccuriucs Contracts (Regulauon) (Stock Exchanges and Clearing Co11>0raaons) Regulauons. 
2012 

4. Securities And Excbange Board Oflndia (International Financial Sen•ices Centres) Guidelines, 2015 
5. J(ules, Regula1·ions, Cir<:ulors, O rders. notification ond Direc1·ives issued under rhe obove statue to the 

CKtcnc applicable. 
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W/e have relied on the representation made by the Company, its Offic.rs md on the reports given by 
designated pro fessionals for systen'ls and processes fonned by lhe Comp:u1y ro monitor and ensure 
cornplian<.'.es under oth<'r applicable .t\cts. ]_..j\ \VS and RC:blUlatio ns to the Co1npany. 

Du1ing the year under rcvic\v the Company has co1nplied ,virh rhe p1·ovisions of 1he ~·\cc, Rules, Reguf:.ujons, 
Guidelines, St~nd~rdi::, CLC. 1ne-ncione-d ~bovc. 

\~/(· further lt cporc 'fhac, 

111e Form AOC - 5 required to be fJed under the provisions of che companies Act 20 I 3 was filed after the 

srntutory period along with tlic additional filing fees. 

We further report that: 

Bo•rd of Direcrots of the Company is dnly conscimted wich the proper balance o f Directors. The clrnnges in 
tht~ con1posltion of the 13oal'd of Directors ch:\t took plac,e during Lhc year undel' .rcvic'v \VCt<· c:u·riC'd out 111 

co1npliancc \vi th lhc provisions of the J\cL. 

~\11 Jcc.isions in Lht: Board is carried through, \Vhilc chc dissenting rnc111bcrs' vi.c,vs, if any, arc captured and 

recor<led as part o f the nunuH!s. 

Adequate· notice is given to all direccocs to schcduk- th<" Bo•rd ·i''lcctings. agenda and dct>tilcd notes 011 agenda 
\Vere scnl ~Lt least seven <lays in adv:Lnce ex:rtpt in some il1stt1nte \\.·herein the shorter nolice \vas consented by 1.he 

Directors, and a systctn exists for seeking and obLaining further infonnation and clarifications on Lhc agenda 

items before tl1e meecing and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

\"1e further report that there are adt.-quate systems and p rocesse$ 111 the con1pauy con1mt-nsut1tlt' 

with the size ""d operations of the comp•ny to monitor and ensure complfance '"1th applicable Jaws, rules, 

regt11a tions and guidelines. 

We furthe r report that during che year company has issued 5.00,00,00 shares on righ1 basis having a f:·>cc 

value o f Rs IU/- per <<1uity share LO NSE Ck aring limi ted on 29/03/20 19. 

Place; Ahmcdabad 
Date; 2- 4 \ ou) .20 l':r 
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304, Shoppers Plaza-V, Opp. Municipal Markel, C. G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmadabad · 380 009. 

Telefax: (0) +917926464153, 48904153 • Moblie +91 9825035998 
E mall : info@umeshvedcs.com, umeshvedcs.offlce@airtelmail.in • Websrte · www.umeshvedcs.com 

To. 
11ie l\knibers, 

N SE IFSC CLEARING CORPORAT ION LIMI'l'ED, 
Unit-l202, Brigade lnternauonal Firrnncial Centre 12th FloO(, 

l.llock-14, Road IC. Zone- I, 

<..i lr-r Sc'-L ( i 1tt (:ny, 

Gandhinagar GJ 382355 

Our «1>orr or even <bite IS lO be rc•d along wirh rhis le tter. 

I. f\l:=iinlenance of set~retarial r(·Cor<l is the re-sponsibili(y o f the rnan:.ip,e1n enr of rhe cofnp any.( )ur 
responsibility is w express an opinion on these secretarial records based on ou r audit. 

2. \"\'c have follo\ved the audit practices and processes ns \Vere appropriatC' to obtain reasonable assurance 
aboLn rhe correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 'T'hc verification \V:ll> done on rest b~si:\ to 
ensure that correct fac1s arc rdlccted in sccrcrnrial r<:cords. We believe that the processes and prac1iccs. we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. \Y/e have no1 verified lhe correctness and appropri-acenes~ of hn~ncial records and l3ooks of Accounl !> ul 
tlw Companl'· 

4. \Vhcrever rctiuircd, \VC have obtained the I\lanage1nent repres.cnt~1ion about the cornplrnn('e of la\\.''i, rule-$ 
and rcguln tions and happeoingi; of event;i; clC. 

S. ·rhc con'lpJiance of dle provls1ons o f CoL1>ora1·c ~tnd orhcr app~cable h\\V.S., rults1 regul:ujons
1 
~tandards 1s 

the responsibility of management. l Jur exoinination wa< !united to the verification of procedures on rest 
bnsi~ . 

6. 'f lu_• sccn .. 1ari~l A11rli1 rcporl is nei.-he.r <ln assurance as to Lhc fururc viability o f rhe con1p:any nor o f the 
efficiency or effectiveness ,vi th 'vhich the rn:tnagctncnt has conducted the :tffairs of the con11y."1n}" 

Place: Ahmcdabad 

Date: 2 t.. \ ou I 2-0 l"f 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of NSE IFSC Clearing 

Corporation Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Ind AS 
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as "Ind AS Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind 
AS"), of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its loss including other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other Information 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules 
issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregulari ties; selection and application of appropriate 
account ing policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company' s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as 
a whole are free from mat erial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements. As part of an 
audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control re levant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls . 
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS f inancial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and t iming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act , we give in "Annexure 1 " , a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

(2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit ; 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and 
the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder; 

e. On the basis of the written representations recei<ved from the directors as on March 31 , 2019, 
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31 , 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our 

separate report in "Annexure 2"; 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 

position; 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, 
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise; 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W J W100048 

Sumant Sakhardande 

~ 
Membership No. 034828 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 24, 2019 
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 'S REPORT 
Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the 
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation 
Limited on the Ind AS f inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

(i) 
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the 
management and as informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to 
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable property. Accordingly, the provisions stated 
in paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(ii) As Informed, t he Company does not have any inventories. Therefore, the provisions stated 
in paragraphs 3(ii)(a), 3(ii)(b) and 3(ii)(c) of the Order are not applicable. 

(iii) As informed, t he Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii)(a) , 3 (iii)(b) and 3 (iii)(c) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(iv) Based on information and explanation given to us in respect of loans, investments, 
guarantees and securities, the Company has not entered into any t ransactions which fall 
under the purview of Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company 

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of Section 73 to 
Section 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the 
products of the Company under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and the rules 
framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(vii) 
(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, 

undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax, 
customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, however, 
there have been slight delay in few cases. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, 
cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the 
year end, for a period of more than six mont~s from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues with 
respect to income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, which have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute. 
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(ix) The Company has neither raised money by way of public issue offer nor has obtained any 
term loans. Therefore, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(x) During the course of our examination of t he books and records of the Company, carried out 
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by i ts officers or employees, noticed or 
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the 
management. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, no managerial remuneration has 
been paid I provided for the peri od under audit. Hence, the question of requisite approvals 
mandated by t he provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act does not arise. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii ) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into by 
the Company with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and Section 188 
of Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial 
Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fu lly or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, paragraph 
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the 
year. 

(xvi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to 
be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W I W100048 

Partner 

~hip No. 034828 -
Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 24, 2019 
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the 
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited 
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of 
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of NSE IFSC 
Clearing Corporation Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of 
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (" ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabili~ of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 

. and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W I W100048 

-.i. Membership No.034828 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 24, 2019 
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

BAlANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019 

Particulars Notes As at 31.03.2019 

AS SUS 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Cother intangible assets 
intangible assets under development 

Fmancial ass.eh 
Other financicil assets 

Non-current bank balances 
Others 

Income t« assets (net) 

Total non-current assets 

lnvcstments ·Core Settlement Guarantee Fund 

Current assets 

Financia' assets 
. Cas:h and cash equ~valents 

· B•nk balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Other current assets 

Total current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

Equity Share capital 

Other equity 

TOTAL EQUITY 

Core Settlement Guarantee Fund (Core SGF) 

LIABILITIES 
Non-cutrent liabilities 

Provisions 
Cutre-nt liabilities 

Finandal liabilities 
Trade payables 

[i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

(Ji/ total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 

Deposits 

Other financial li(lbiJities 

Provisions 

Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

TOfAl LIABILITIES 

TOfAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

~ummiary of ~ignificant ac.rnuming policies 

Notes refer to above form ;m integral part of the Balance sheet 
As pef our report of even date attached 

"/ 

8 

lOa 

lOb 

l l 

12 

l3 

14 

15 

16 

l7 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

60.83 
447.05 

9.61 

138.34 

0.45 

0.22 

656.SO 

791.63 

1,489.79 

4,468.47 

22.85 

z.oz 

6,983.13 

8,431.26 

7,500.00 

!2,203.43) 

S,296.57 

791.63 

o.ss 

1,166.09 

332.09 

775.10 

2.52 

66.71 

Z,342.Sl 

3,134.69 

8,431.26 

For Ha.ibhakti & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

IClll Fi•"1 Registration No. 1035UW I W 100048 ~~ 
Samir K Barua Mukesh Agarwal 

..+-ace : Mumbai 

l!at'': l\prH 24, 2019 

Dirt!dor 

[ DIN :0021.1077 I 

Nitin Bhad re 
Chief financial Officer 

Place MLJrntJai 

l)ate : Apri I :4, 2019 
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Director 

[ DIN:030S4BS3 J 

(Rs in Lakhs) 

As at 31.03.2018 

Vivek Singhvi 

19.85 

12.29 

49.14 

141.28 

689.87 

6.701.82 

2.00 

0.30 

6,104.12 

7,535.27 

7,000.00 

ll.838.33) 

5,161.67 

689.87 

0.33 

487.68 

312.28 

842.32 

2.89 

38.23 

1,683.40 

2,373 60 

7,535.27 

Chief EKecuth1e Officer 

Chi rag N:agda 

Company Secretary 
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NSE tFSC CLEARll<G CORPORAflON LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS >OR THE VEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

hH:ome 
R~11tnue from oper~tions 

Other in<:om' 

Total tncoll'le 

EJ(penses 

Employee b+?n"!fih E!•l)eose 

ocprccia~ion ~nd (lmofti$<'tion exp~ns~ 

Other 1h:penses 

Total Eie:pense1 

Proflt /(t.OS$) before tax 

L~SS: Tax CJ.l)Cl\SC 

Cu11~11t tax 

C>eferre(t tcix 

Total ta• expeoM~s 

Profit/ {loss, for the l't!:tiod {A) 

Other C.omprehen·slve lnoome 
Items that will be rc<l~ssified to profit or loss. 

ftem$ that wiU not be r~lau.ified to pro flt or loss 

~cmeasvrt>ments of post-emplovrneflt benefit 
obligations 

Ch~nges in foreign currency translation «~serve 

N-Otts 

18 

19 

2&3 
20 

For the year 

ended 31.03.2019 

12.94 

U.94 

178.17 

44.99 

430.04 

GS3.20 

(640.26) 

1640.26) 

(O.Bj 

ll&.10 

Total Other Comprehen$lve ln«>me for the period (Niet of Taxes) (6} 315.97 

TotaJ Comprehensive fnc.ome for the pietlod (A+9} 

Eart'lings pief equity share (Face Value Rs.10 each) 

- B;,sic & Diluted (Rs.) 

S.umrn.ar\' of ~ign\ficant accountins ooficies 

(314.291 

21 to.90) 

Notes refer to above form an integral p(lrt nf the Statement of Profit & loss 

As pe1 our report of ~ven date attached 

For Haribhakti & Co. llP 

Chartere(I AC(.Ounu1nts 

CCAI Firm Reg•strt1tlon No. 103S2JW / W 100048 

For and on beh;,lf of thP Board of Directors 

~~ 
Samit I< &.arua Mukesh Ag.arw.at 

otrectot Oire<tor 

( OIN:00211077) ( O•N:030S485! J 

(Rs in Lakhs) 

tor thcyc~r 
encl~d 31 0::1 20L8 

184.59 

2l.32 
688.35 
394,)€ 

(894.26) 

(l.84) 

J4.81 

32.9/ 

[861.7.91 

~·1 .-i91 

Vlvek Sh,ghvi 

Chief Executive Officer 

p~ 
~embership No.: 034828 

- Place; f.11vmb(li 

f)(lte . April 2-1, 2019 

~o..9-.~ 
U'~ 

.. 

Nitln 8hadrc 
Chief Financial Officer 

Pl~cc; l\1urnbai 

Date: April 7.4, l019 

28 

Chirag Nagda 

Companv $('<retary 
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

;II; Equity SJ .. ..., capital 

!O) 

Balance as al 01.04.2018 
chan.gei in equity s.hare cap•tal during the pefiod 
Balance as at 31 .03.2019 

Oth~r Equity 

P1rticutars 

Balance as at April 1, 2017 

1•rofl1 /llossl for the Year 
Other Comorehensivt' lneome 

Contdbut1on to Core SGF 

~hJtr issue ~xoonses 
C.h.3nges in Foreign Currency lr<'nslation R1H.~fvt 

11\rouAh Other Comprehensive Income 

f-
Balance as at March 31, 2018 

Bal1ncc as at April 1, 2018 

Profit llloss)for the perood 
(~nets in foreign Corrency Transtat;oo Reurw 
through Other Compre~silre locome 

(antribution to Core SGf 

!>hart issue expenses 
01h~r Comprehensive Income 

Balance as at March 31, 2019 

As per our report ol e"'en date attached 
For Harib~o~ti "'co. LLP 

Chanorcd Accountants 
IC.A.I Firm Re:gisLt.ation No. 10351'.JW / W 100048 

~:~~:~ ~mpnu.• v,...,28 

..._ •~e: M1,,1mtJ.;i1 

I.late: Apr:124, 2019 

. .. 

(Rs.in ukhs) 

7,000 
500 

7,500 

Retained Earnings 

(83.36) 

(894.26) 

(689.54) 

(38.43) 

-

(1,705.59) 

(1,705.59) 

(640.26) 

(50.31) 

(0.50) 

(2,396.66) 

29 

Reservel and Surplus 

Foreign Currency Other Comprehensive 

T~nslation Reserve Income 

(165.71 -
-

U.841 

-
34.81 

(130.90) (1.84) 

(130-90 (1.84) 

32610 -

(0.13) 

195.20 (1.971 

for and on behalf of the Board of Oiroctol's 

Sam+.- k B.3rua 

Dlreaor 

( DtN:00211077 I 

~ 
Muk" sh Agarwal 

Dlrmo< 

( OlN·030548S3] 

(Rs in U khs) 

Total 

(249.071 

(894 761 

ll8AJ 
(689.~41 

(38.43) 

34 81 

(1,838.ll) 

(1,838.33) 

(640 .'bl 

32610 

t50ll) 

(0 '.t)I 
(0 ll) 

(2,203.431 

Viveic Singh:vi 

Chk-t Ettcu1Ne Officer 

~~ 
u~.J!/. 

Chirag Nagda Ni1in Bhadre 
Ch\C!f F;nandal Off)ctr 

Place : Mumbai 

Oat•: Aprol 24, 2019 
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NSE IFSC ClEAR.ING COAPORAnON UMIT£D 
CASH FLOW STATEMENTPOR n.IE VEAR EN0£0 MA~{H ll. 2019 

P;;HtlculiifS 

f>J CAS~ FlOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES. 

NFT PROF'IT BEFORE TAX 

Acid: AdJu$rmanu. '°': 
Deprecia!ioro & Amo1tiz.a1ion £11.l)emt'S. 

Loss on sale of ~uap 

Lo~s on fi.11('(1 as~ets writt~ll aff 

Re-me;;isur~menrof defi11ed benef1t.s plans. 

L@SJ: AcljLU:tr'JU~:l'IU for; 

Interest incomc l.)r'l b•nk de,:iosit~ 

OPERATING P~or;1r BEFOR;E WORKING CAPITAL (HANG ES 

Adjustments for : 

rroc1111d of De1J.Osit fro m 1ri!clin.~ m1trnber I .ips::ilinnt 

Tr:;idP. P;;i y,.bl@~ 

Dihel finaric1al liabilities 

O'hier financial ;;i~sets 

Olhl'r CllffC'11t .t:.s.eh 

l.urrent l i<11:Jilftif!.~ &, Pmvis.ions. 

CASH GENERATE[) FROM OPERATIONS 

Direct Toxes paoid (Nl't o f f<:t::funds) 

NET (ASH FROM jUSt:D INI OPEAATING ACTIVITIES· Totiiill (A) 

ll] CA.sttFl.OW FROM l"IVeSTING ACTIVITIES 

Purthase of fo:ea Assets 

Pr-0ceeds frof'tl ~ale or Fil(ed As.set.s 

Investment in fi11.ed depos.it~ 

1ntiP.rest r11ceivea 

NET CASJ.l FROM (ll5ED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES-Totilt (BJ 

Cl CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceed s fro11'\ Issue of (Q1Jitv Sh.ares 

Sh;ir"" l~~oe f )lpPnsP 

fl.mount rroirl';ferreCI 10 gua rantee :>P.ctlement fund 

NET CASti FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ~CTIVITIES: - lQtill ~C) 

Chanaei o n account of ccmven.iQn of b alaonces f rom functional 
t:ufr~q to pr~set1UtiOl'I tutrel'ley 

N<T INCREASE/ (OlCRlASE) IN CASH ANO CASH EQUNALENTS (A+8o<i 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING Of THE YEAR 

CASli AND CilSH EQUIVA.LF;;NTS AT TliE END Of THE YEAR 

Nfl INOU:ASE / jOf.CfU~A.Sfl IN CASH AND CASH UlUl\IALENl'S 

1teco11ciliation of ca s 11 inO ca sh equiv.alel'lts as p er tlie cash ft ow statemePt 

Cash ancl ush e quivalP.nls a !. per ~bovP. comprise of tile following 

Ca sh ancl c ash equiYaoli:!n ts. 

Bank ovP.rdra fts 

BiilliHI (l!:S. per statem~nt of (ills.t.11ows 

N1:>tes t o CHl'I Flow St;iitement ; 

for rhe vear 
endea n_o3.2c1g 

(640.161 

..... 
2.l3 

6.H 

(0.13) 

112.'141 

(5"•.641 

19 . .81 

blB.4! 

167.111 

re.511 

11.n1 

28.B 

49.41 

I0.22) 

49.25 

14.l0.>3) 

O.B4 

l•,6')6.81) 

0 .1S 

IS,03&.;>J 

500.00 

10.SO) 

(50.ll) 

449.19 

326.10 

(4,21l.031 

6.70l.S2 

2,489.79 

(4,2Jl.031 

2,489.79 

2,489.79 

(Ri. ioLakh:.I 

r(lr rhe-v~ar 

e r1de d ~ LCH 1.0l3 

1894 161 

1131 

(134) 

(.874 nl) 

312 211 

373 lo 

7'H 3:i' 

l D9 

3 ) ]2 

E.:t '.>,!l9 

635.99 

17'-"1 

(75 l91 

2,000 00 

(3B 4 3) 

llOJ Oli 

1,758.S~ 

~4 ~l 

2,354 06 

4 .347 76 

6,701.82 

2,3S4.06 

G,701 F:S2 

6,70182 

The •tiove cash f low Sratement h.as been prep~red u nder t~e "Indirect M ethod" as :1.et out in the trid AS 7 on Statenlol!'ri~of O:!.h r lo 1N 

PrewiQU~ ll'eriod / vear·~ fig..ir~~ n~ve been re groupe d/ recla~sified where'o'er ne<ess.ar)l 1o c.orrespon.d witti the current p.erioct 

d a s.sifica t ion / cli!.dosure 

ForHatib~aktl & ( O. LLP 

c narteted Atc:C'lurite nts 

. •, 

Forand ort beh3lf o f 01e 8oi1rd of Oitectots 

Director OitectOI' 

( D•N;OOl11071 ( ( 01No030548S3 I 

~· 
Nltin 9h1dr@ 

Chief ~ina~c:litl Offlc:er 

l1lace: Mum ba1 

Oate · Apfll 14, 20J9 
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Chlrag Nagda 

Company Secretaorv 



NSE 
International 
Clearing 

NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

~otes tci financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Bachground and Summary of significant accounting policies: 

rhe NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Ltd. (NICCL), a wt1oll)I owned subsidiary of NSE Clear'ing Limited ( Former!·~ known as National 5€"curit 1es Clearing Corporatior. J td 

(NSCCl)). was tncorporated in December 2, 2016. It is set up to operate a clearing corporation as a unit in an International Financial Service Cent.-e (IFSC) in India. 

The financial statemenB were authorised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on. April 24, 1019. 

Summary of significant accounting policie:i: 

This note provides .:i list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of Indian Accounting St andard [lnd A.S) financial statements ("Ind AS 

financial statements''J. These policies have been consistently applied t o a'l the vears I periods presented, unle.ss ot hierwise stated . 

.:t) Basis of preparation 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the hi~torical cost coriventiOl'I on t he accruat basis e)(c~pr 

for certain financ.ial instruments which are measured at fair values. the pravi.!tions of the Companies Act, 2.013 ('Act'} (to the edc-nt not if ied}. The Ind AS arc 

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read witli Rule 3 of tfie Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. J.OJS and Amendment Rules. Accounting policies 

have been consistently applied and are consistent with those used in the previous year except where a newly issued accounting standard is initiallv adopted or a 

revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hit herto in use. 

til Hrsroricol cast conv~ntion 

The financial statements have been prepared on a tiistorical cost basis. except tor the following: 

·certain financial asse(s and liabilities that is measufed at (air value, and 

- defined benefit plans~ plan assets: measured at fair value 

Fair value is the price that would be recei\led to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markel panicipants ot [he meas.u remerH 

date, regardless of whether that pnce 1s directly observable or e5timated u5ing another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liabilitv, the 
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability which market participants would take into account when pricing the asse• or JiabilHy at the 

measurement date. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurement5 are categorised into Levell, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value 

measurements are ob5ervable and the significance of t'1e inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for id en tic.al assets or liabilities t hat ttie e,,titv can access at t he measufement dilte; 

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices induded within Level l, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or Jn directly; and 

Level 3 i'1puts are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

b) Foreign currency translation and transactions 

fi) Fvncttonol and presentation currency 

Items in.duded in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency ot the primary economic em.1ironment in wh ich tht? enti1y operates 
('the functional currency') The functional currency of the Company is. USO. 

The financial ~tatemeots are presented in Indian cur,ency (INR). which is tile Company's presentation currency. 

(ii) Transaction5 and bafances 

Foreign currency traflsactions are translated into the fu~ctional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactton'S. foreig11 exchang~ gai11s and 

iosses resulting from the settlement of stJch transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and li~bilities denominated in foreign currencies .at the period 

end ex:changc rates are recognised in Slatement of profit 0' loss. 

Non-rnorietarv items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rat es at the date when the fa ir value was determined. 

Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair vatue are reported a5 part of the fair value g.ail'l or loss. For e;11;ample, translation differences on non­

monetary assets and Ii.abilities S\.ICh as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss: are recognised •n Statement of profit or loss as. part of the fajr 

value gain Or' loss and tfanslation differences on non-monetary assets such a~ equity investments classified dS FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensiv~ 
income. 

{iii} Translation to the presentation currency 

The financial statements are translated from flrrictional currency to presentat~on currency by using the following procedures: 

{a) assets and liabilities fm each balance sheet presented {i.e. including comparatives} sfiaH be translated .at the closing rate at the date ot that balance sheet ; 

(b) income and e;w;:pen.ses for each statement of pr'ofit and loss presented (i.oe. including compar'atives) shall be t ranslated at exchange rates at the dates of the 

transactions; and 

(c) all resulting exchange differences sllall be recognised in other comprehensive income. 

c) Revenue recognitiofl 

Revenue i.s meas!Jred at the fair -value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts di.!tdosed as revenue are net of allowances, incentives, taxes and 
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

The ComJ:Jany recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is. probable that tutu re economic benefits will f low to the entity and 
spectfit: Crilerio have been met for each of the Company's acti'llitie!> as de-scribed below. The Comp.an)' bases its estim09tcs or' tn!ttOrical results, taking ·into 
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics. of each arrangement. 

Revf'riue is recognised in the period wher' tl"le 'Sefv1c:e is provided as per arra11gements/agreemeflts wit h thP. customers. The sources of reverlue are· 

(i) Cle~fing Qnd Settlement charges. If & support ChMges and processi11g charg,es an~ recognized on accrual basis as ond when the services are 1 endered.; 
(ii) lncorne excludes applicable taxes and othe' levies 
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In respect of members who have been declared as defaulters Oy the Company all amounts {dues) rt!maining to be recove1ed, net of av.:iilable security and 

ins:u1ance cover avaitable if any, till the elate of being ded.-ired as defaulters are written off as bad debts. All sub.sequ~nt recoveries are accounted when received 

Penal charges in respect of shortages due from the respective member i:!. recognised in Statement prnfit and loss as part of other re\lenue to the extent such 

charges are recoverable in the period of declaration of default. 

Insurance claims are accounted on accrual basis when the claims becorne due and payable. 

0) Income ta.es 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the ta:i.: payable on the cuuent period''S: taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by 

chiJnges in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to tempo<ary differences and to unused ta)( losses, if any. 

Th<! current income ta)( charge is c;:1lculated on the basis of the ta:x. l<1ws enacted ar substantivell,' en.aaed at the end of ttle reporting period. Management 

periodically evaluates positions taken in ta:ic: returns with respect to situatior1s in wtiich applicable ta)( regulation is subject to interpretation. It cstabl~shf..'s 

provisions where appropriate on the basis of amollnts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Deferred income tax. is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on deductibl~ and ta,.al>le temporary differences arising between the tax basPs of asse1s 

and liabilif1es and their carrving amounts in the fin:ancial statements. Deferred inc:ome ta)( is determined using tax rates (and Laws) that have been enacted or 

substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred incorne taJC osset is realised or ttie deferred 1ncomc­

t.2IM liability is settle cl. 

Deferred income tax ass:et are recognized to the e:X'teM that it is prnboble thot taxoble profit will be available ag31nst which the deductible temporary diffen~11i:es. 

and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses cal'\ be utilized. Deferred income tax liabilities are recogni.zed for all ta.xable temporary 

differences. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are re\1'1ewed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised only if ii is probable that futufe tai<:attle amounts 

will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

Deferred tax assets are not recogr1ised for tempocary differences bet\veen the carrying amount ancl tax bases of investments ·1n subsidiarles, associates and 

interest in joint arrangements where it ls 11ot probable that the diffe.-erices wil1 'e11erse ir. the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be nvailable against 

which the tempo,ary diffe,ence can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current taic: assets. and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances 

r~late to the same taxation authority. Current ta)( assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity hils a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to 

settle on a n-!!!t basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Current and deferred ta.:ii: is recognised in Statement of profit or los..s, except to the extent that it relates. to items recognised in other comprehensive inc.ome or 

directly in equit\l. In this. case, tlie ta)( is also recognised in ottler comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

e) lmpal,ment of assets 

lnt"ngible assets. that have an indefiriite useful life ar~ not subject to amortisation and are tested annuallv fo, impairment. or more frequently if events or changes 

in circumstanc:es indicate that they might be imp.aired. Other assets a'e tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances incl1cate {hat the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable. Afl impairmen.t Joss is 1'eco,gnised for the amount by which the asset's carryjng amount exceed5 its recove1able amount. 

The recove.-~ble amount is. the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes r:if assessing impairment. assets arc grouped 

at the lowest levets for which there 3fe ser;iarately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets 

{c:ash-generaflng units). Nofl-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reportit1g penoU 

f) Cash Flow Statements & Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items and talil is adjusted for the effects of tr'ans3ctioris of 11or1 

c<ish nature <md anv deferrals or .accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the 

Company are segregated based on the available information. 

Cash ~nd Cash equivalents include~ cash on hand, d~posits held at call wlth financial in5titutions, other shor1·term, highly l iquid investments with original 

maturities of three months or less that are readily co.flvertible to known amounts of cash and which a'e subject to an insignificant risk of changes ifl value. These 

do not include bank balances earmarked/Jestricted for specific purposes. 

gj Trade rec:eivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initiallv at fair value and subsequently meastJred at amortised cost using the effective interest method. less pro'llision tor 

impairment. 

h) lnvHtments and other frnanclal assets 

(i) Classification 

The Campany classifie~ its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

- those to be measured subseQuently at fair value (either Ulfough other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and 

·those measured at amortised cost. 

Tl\e classification depends on the entity's business madej for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains arid losses will eithe.- be recorded in profit or lass or other comprehensive income. For investment~ if\ debt instruments, 

this will depend on tlie btJsiness model in which the investment is hejd. For irivestments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company h:as 

made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to .account for the equ~ty investment .:it fair value th,ough other compreherisive in{ome. The 

Comp:any reclassifies debt investments when and Ofllv when its business model for managing those assets ckanges. 

(ii) Mecsv1emeM 
At lnitial recognition. the Company measures a financial asset ;;it its fair value pltJs, ir\ the casf'. af a financial asset not at fair vallle through profit or l<J~s. 

lram"'ction costs. that a'e directly attributable to the acqu·1sition of the financial asset. Tfairis.:.ction costs ot financial assets carr~ed <Jt fair vdlue through profit ur 
loss a'e e:icf)er\Sed in pfofit or loss. 

Debt insrrumenrs 
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Amortised cost; Ass.ets that are held for coHection of contractual c.:1sh flows wt1ere those cash flows fepresent s.ole:ly payments of prir.cipa l and interest are 

measured at amortised c:os:t. A gain Or' loss or. a debt investment that i'> subsequently measured 0it omortis.ed ~ost and is not part of a hedgmg re-lationship is 

recognised in profrt or loss whe11 the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance iricome using the effective 

interest rate method. 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that ue held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the finoncial asset.s., where the 

assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured .at fair value througti other cornp,ehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the 

carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment Bains or losses, interest revenue and foreoign elilc~ainge gains and losses whi[h are 

recognised in prof"1t and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previousty recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity ro profit 

or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financfal assets is included ln othe' iflcome using t he effective interest rate method. 

Falr value through profit or lo§;§;: Asseb that do not meet the Cfiter"1a fol' amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on 

a debt investment that is subseQuently measured at f~ir value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or ~ass and presented net in the statemerlt of profit and 

loss within other goins/(losses) in the period in which it a,.i~es. Interest income from these financial assets is indllded in other incomP.. 

fquity investments (orher rhafl Jnvestments in subsidiaries, asso(iOt~5 and joinr venture) 

The Compacw subsequently me;.lSUfes all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and ~osses on 

eqtJity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Divider'\d.S from such 

investments continue to be rec.ognised in profit or loss as othe< income when the Company's right to receive pavrnents is established. 

Changes in the fair value of financial asset.sat fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses] in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment 

losses !and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other r;hange:s in fair value. 

fquiry Investments (in subsidioties. associates and joinr venture) 

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joir'lt venture are c.arried at cost less accumulat ed impairment losses, if any. Where: an indication of impairment e11ists, 

the carrying amount of the irwestment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The accounting policy orr impai(men~ of non-financial 

assets is disclosed in Note e. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joillt venture, the d ifference between net disposal proceeds and the c3rrying 

amounts ore recognited it1 the statemern of proHt and loss. 

(W} lmpo;rment of financial assers 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets ca.-ried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt inst ruments The 

impairment methodology applled depends an whetherth~re has been a signiflc:ant increase irl credit risk. 

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified apprnach permitted by Ind AS 109, which requires e)(pect~d rHetim~ losses to be l'ecognised from 
inPtl"I re,ognition o1 the receivables. 

(jv) Dt!·recognfrion of fjnanciol ossers 
A financial asset is de-recognised only when 

- rhe Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the flna11ciaJ ;.:.sset or 

- retains the contractual rights to rece·1ve the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contrac.tual obligat!on to pay the: cash 

flows to one or more recipients. 

Whefe the compafly has transferred an asset. it evC1luates whether it has transfer,ed substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the fm.anci.al a.sset. Ir. such 

cases, the financia.I asset is de-recognised. Where the company has not transferred substof\tially all risks and rewards of ownership of the fina ncial asset, thE 

financial asset is not de-recognised. 

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset no' l'etain.s substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, t he f inancia l asset ·1s 

de-recogniseO if the Company has not retained control of the finarlcial asset. Where the Companv retains colltrol of the financial asset, t he asset is continued to be 

recognised to the e)(tent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

(v) lnrome recognition 

Interest income 

lnte<est income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate m~thod. The effective interest rate i:s the rate that exaelly discounts estimated 

future cash rec.eipts through the ex:pected life of the financial assets to the gross canying amatmt of a financial asset. When calculating the effortive interest rate, 

the Company estimates the e)(pected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the e)(pected credit 

~os.s.es 

Dividends 

Dividends are recoenised in Statement of profit and loss onlv whefl the right to receive payment is e.stablished, it is. probable that the economic benefits associated 

with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be: reliably measured. 

Finaoci\ll liitbilities 

(i} Classification as deb( or ~quity 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contrac:tu"I arr.,ngements entered into and the 

definitions of a fin.ancial tiability .and an equity instrument. 

(ii} fflilicl recognition and measuremenr 

Financial liabil"1ties ore recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the inst rument. rina11r ial liabilit ies arc iriit 1i.illy me<t.su red· <Jt 

th~ amortised c:ost unless at initial recognition. they are classified as fair value thrm.1~h profit an.d loss. 
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n) Provisions 
Provisions for legal claims and discounts/incentives are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 1t is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be reQuired to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliablv estimated. Provi>ions are not recogn ised for future 

operating losses. 

At the end of each reporting period, provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure 1equ1red to 1.ettlc the 

present obligation at a future date. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the tiinc 

value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The Increase in the prov·1sion due to the passage of t ime is recognised as intere't expense. 

o) Contingent Liabilities and contingent assets 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be conf;rmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within t he control or the Company or a present obligation that arises from past 
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources w ill be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. If the Inflow of economic benefits is probable. then it is disclosed in the financial statemonts. 

p) Contributed equity 
Equity shares are classified as equity. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new :>haros or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the procfeds. 

q) Dividends 
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared including dividend distribution tax, being appropriatelv authorised and no longer at the discretion of 

the entity, on or before the end of the repartlng period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period. 

r) Earnings per share 

(i) Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by d ividing: 
the profit att ributable to owners of the company 

- by the weighted average number of equit y shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares Issued during the year 

(ii) Diluted Earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take Into account: 

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and 
the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all 

dilutive potential eouitv shares. 

s) Operating Lease 

Leases of property, plant and equipment and land where the company, as lessee, has substantially received all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, ar e included in other financial l iabilit ies. Each lease payment is allocated between the 

liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss overthe lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest 
on the remaining balance of the liability for each penod. 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. 

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from (he lessor) are charged to statement of profit and los' on a str•ight-lin~ basis over the 
period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with e•pected general inflation to compeosate for the lessor's expected 1nflat ionarv CO>t 

mcreases. 

t ) Employee Benefits 

(i) Provident Fund: The company registered with Regional Provident f und Office, Ahmedabod, and both the employee and the employer make monthly 
contribution equal to 12% of the employee' s basic salary respectively. 

(ii) Superannuation: Superannuat ion benefits are covered bv group poli cies with the Life Insurance Corporation of India maintained by the ultimate Holding 
Company. The conlrlbutio<l payable for the year is charged to revenue. There are no other obligations other than the annual contribution payable. 

(iiil Gratuity: The ultimate Holding Company has maintained a Group Gratuity Cum Life Assur ance Scheme with the life Insurance Corporation of India (tlC) 

towards which it annually contributes a sum determined by LIC. Provisions are made for the def in"'1 benefit with respect to gratuity liability based on the present 
value of defined benefit obligat ion as reduced by the lai r value of plan assets as per the actuarial valuation calculation. The present value is calculated using the 

projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains or los;es are recognized in full in the other comprehensive income for the period in which they occur. 

(Iv) Leave Encashment : liability on account of l eave encashment i• provided based on Actuarial Valuation at Balance Sheet date using the proiected unit credit 

method. 

M Short term employee benefits are charged to revenue In the year in which the related service Is rendered. 
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x) Recent accounting pronouncements 

(ii Ind AS 116 Leases: 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the exist ing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases. and 

related Interpretations The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition. measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both part ies to a cont ract 

i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 Introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to r t?c()gnize asset5 and liabilit ies for all leases with a 
term of more than twel'/e months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & l oss. 

The stand•rd also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requi rements In Ind AS l 7 

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The st andard permits two possible methods of t ransit;on: 

•Full retro5Pective-Retrospectlvely to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and orrors 

• Modified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of Initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial application. 

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental 

borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as: 

• Its carrying amount as of t he standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of 

init ial application or 

• An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease recognited under Ind AS t 7 

immediately before the date of initial application. 

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods. 
On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the 'Modified Retrospective Approach' for transit ioning to 

Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, comparat ives for the year 

ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The Company has elected certain available practical expedients on t ransition. 

The Company is currently evaluatlng t he effect of this amendment on the financial st atements. 

(ii) Ind AS 12 Appendi• C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: 

On M arch 30, .1.019, Minist ry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while 

performing the determination of ta~able profit (or loss). tax bases, unused tax losses. unused tax credits and tax r~tes, when there is uncertaint y over Income t ax 

treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companles need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each t ax treatment. 

Dr grnup of tax treatments, that t he companies have used or plan t o use in their income tax filing which ha1 to be considered to compute the most likely amount 

or the expected value of the t ax treatment when determining taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. 

The standard permits two possible methods of transition ·ii Full retrospective approach -Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each 

prior reporting period presented In accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. without using hindsight dnd 11 ) 

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on inltlal application, without adj ust ing comparatives. 

The effective date for adoptton of Ind AS 12 Appendix C i s annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company will adopt thP standard on April 1, 

2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of init ial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparauves. 

The Company is currently evaluating t he effect of this amendment on the f inancial statements. 

(iii) Amendmenl to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes: 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, 'Income Taxes', in connection with accounting for dividend 

distribution ta•es. 

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends In profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity 

according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. 

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company does not have any impact on account of this 

amendment. 
(iv) A.mendmenl to Ind AS 19 - plan amendment, curtailment or settlement: 

On March 30, 2019, Minist ry of Corporate Affairs iosued amendments to Ind AS 19, 'Employee Benef its'. In connection with accounting for plan amendments, 

curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an entity: 

• to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or 

settlement; and 
• to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus. even if that surplus was not previously 

recognised because of the Impact of the asset ceiling. 

Effective date for applica tion of t his amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, .l.019. Th' Company does not have any impact on account of this 

amendment. 
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION UMIT£0 

Notes to Finan<tal Statements For the year ~nded Mairch 31, 2.019 

Note 2: Propettv. ph•nt and equipment 

Office 

equipments 
Gtoss carrvi1)i amount 
Op.,ning"' at 01.04.2017 -
Additions 1.30 
Disposals . 
I ransfers -
Closing gross c.arryfng art1our.t 1.30 

Accumulat~d depr~ciation 

Ope11ing as. at 01.04.2017 -
Ocprcc.iation <:harge dunng the period 0.27 
D1spasal> -
Closing a<:la•mulated depreciation 0.27 

Net <arrying amount as at ~l.03.2018 1.03 

Gross. c.;inying amount 

Ooening as •I 01.04.2018 1.30 
Additions H.Ol 
Disposals {1.lOJ 
1 •ansfers . 
Closing gros.s carrying amount 14.02 

AcclJm11lated depreciatiol"l -
Opening as al 01.04.2018 0.17 
Oepreciation chafge during the period 2.27 
D1o;posals (0.59} 
Qosing 3CCu1nllletled depfeCiation l.9S 

Net carrying ~mount as at 31.03.2019 12.07 

Electrical 
ins.tallations 

-
B.62 

-
13.62 

-
1.1) 

1.1) 

12.50 

13.62 
. 

(3./S) 

-
9.87 

. 
1.12 

1.36 

(0.59) 
1.89 

7.97 

Rs in Lakhs 

furniture and 
TOTAL 

C<lpital Work In 
fl.1ttures Progress 

- 16.06 
7.55 22.47 6.41 

- -
(22.4/) 

7.5S 22.47 

-
1.)4 2.6) 

- -
1.J.4 2.6]. -

6.31 19.8S -

7.55 22.47 
46.63 60.65 
{8.63) {13.69) 

- -
4S.54 59.~.1 -

- -
1.24 2.62 
7.23 10.87 

{3./ )) (4.901 
4.75 8.~o 

40.79 60.83 -
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 3 : Other intangible assets 

Clearing and 

Settlement System 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening as <It 01.04.2017 -
Additions 90.98 
Oisposals -
I ransfers . 
Closing gross carrying amount 90.98 

Accumulated amortisation -
Ope11ing as at 01.04.2017 -
Amonisation charge during the period 18.70 
Disposals -
Closing accumulated amortisation 18.70 

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2018 72.29 

G ro~s carrying amount 

Opening as at 01.04.2018 90.98 
Additions 40888 
Disposals -
1 ransfers -
Closing gross carrying amount 499.87 

Accumulated amortisation . 

Opening as at 01.04.2018 18.70 
Amortisation charge during the period 34.12 
Disposals -
Closing accumulated amortisation 52.82 

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2019 447.05 

37 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Intangible Assets under 

development 
TOTAL 

71.24 71.24 

74.97 165.95 
(6.09) (6.09) 

(90.98) (90.98) 

49.14 140.12 

- . 
. 
- 18.70 

- -
- 18.70 

49.14 121.43 

49.14 140. ti 
9.61 418.49 

(49.14) (49.14j 

- -
9.61 509.48 

. -

. 18.70 

. 34.12 

. . 
~2.82 

9.61 456.66 
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q 

10 a) 

Other financial assets (non-current) 

Non Current bank balances 

Fixed deposits with maturity for more than 12 months 

Others 
Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits 

Total 

Investment -Core Settlement Guarantee Fund (Refer Note 
No.11) 

Current accounts with Bani< 
Fixed Oeposits with Sank 
Accrued interest on CSGF FD 
Total 

Cash at1d cash equivalents 

B•lances with banks : 
On current accounts 
Total 

Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents 
Fixed deposits with maturity for less than 12 months 

Total 

Other financial assets (Current) 

Others 

Security deposit for utilities and premises 

Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits 

Total 

Other Current Assets 

Prepaid Expenses 
Other Advance recoverable 

Scrap Sale receivables 
Balance with Government Authorities 
Total 

Share C•pltal 

Authorised 

10.00,00,000 !Previous year: 10,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 

Issued. Subscribed and Paid-up 

7,50.00,000 (Previous year: 7,00,00,000l Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 

Total 

~Shues 

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 

(Rs in Lakhsl 

138.34 

138.34 

OAS 
0.45 

138.79 

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 

(Rs. in Lakhs I 
0.35 

783.71 

7.57 

791.63 

As at 31.03.2019 

689.87 

689.87 

As at 31.03 2018 
(Rs. in l akhs I 

2,489.79 6,701.82 
2,489.79 6.701.82 

4,468.47 

4.468.47 

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 
(Rs. in Lakhs ) 

10.Sl 

12.34 

22.85 

As at 31.03.2019 

200 

2.00 

As at 3l.03.201R 
(Rs. in Lakhs I 

0.15 

l.19 

0.68 
2.02 

As at 31.03.2019 

0.30 

0.30 

As at 31.03.201R 

(Rs. in Lakhs I 

10,000.00 10.000.00 

10,000.00 10,000.00 

7,500.00 7,000.00 

7,500.00 7,000.00 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/· per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share The 
dividend proposed by the Board of Director is subject to the approval of the shareholder in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case of lnt~rim 
olvldend. 

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after dlstr1but1C'>n of all 
p referential amounts. The distribution will be ill proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder. 
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11 

12 

EQUfty Shares: 

Name of the Company As at 31.03.2019 A; at 31.03 2018 

No. of Shates % holding No. of Shares % holding 

NSE Clearing ltd (formerly known as National se,urities 7,50,00,000 100.00% 7,00,00,000 100.00% 

Clearing Corporation Limited) & its norniriees 

Tota l 7 ,50,00,000 100.00% 7,00,00,000 100.00% 

Detail~ of Equity Shareholder holding more th;:in So/o share in the Company {No o f Shares)· 

Name of the Company As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 

~O.Of~hares I % holding No. of Shates % holdinr} 

NSE Clearing Ltd \Formet1v kriow11 as National Securitie.s. 7 ,50,00,000 I 100.00% 7,00,00,000 100.00% 

Cleaflng Corporation Limited) & its nominees 
Total 1 ,50,00,000 I 100.00% 7,00,00,000 100.00% 

Aggregate numbe< of bonus ~tiare:s is.sued durtng the period of five vrar~ immediately preceding the reporting date by way of bonus, shares ~ssued to1 

consideration other than cash & shares bought back · Nil 

Reconciliation of number of shares 

Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 

lssued during the Year 

Outstanding at the end of the Year 

31-03-2019 

No. of S.ha res 

7,00,00,000 

50,00,000 

7,50,00,000 

31-03·2018 

No. of Shares 

5,00,00,000 

;>,00,00,000 

7,00,00,000 

Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contract or commitments for sale of shares or disinve~tments 

Other Equity 

ReseNeS and S'-'rplus 
Particulars Retained Earnings fol'elgn Currency Other Comprehensive 

Balaoce a5 at 01.04.2018 (1,705.59) IB0.90) {l.84) 
Profit /(Loss)for the period (6~0 .l61 

Changes in 1-oreign Currency Translation Reserve through )26.10 
Other Comprehensive Income 

contribLJlion to Col'e SGF (S0.31) 

Share i~sue expen.se.s (0.50) 

Other Comprehensive Income (0.131 
Salance as at 3l.Ol.201g (2,396.66) 195.20 (1.97) 

( Rs In Lakhs) 

Total 

(1,838.33;1 

(61() 26) 

326 10 

{50.31 I 

10.>0:1 

(0.13 I 
(Z,203.43)1 

SEBI vide circular no. SoBl/HO/MRD/DSA/ CIR I P/2016/125 dated November 28, 2016 lias issued norms for set up of fund and minimum corpus nl fund to 
guarantee the senlement of trades executed in the stock exchanges in lf:SC. 

Details of Core SGF are as follows: 

Company's Own contribution• 

Penalty collected from memberS 

Accrue-d interest on CSGF FD 

Total 

As at ll.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 

(Rs. in Lakhs ) 

782.13 

U4 
7.Sli 

791.6l 

689.55 

0.32 

689.87 

•compc.n{s own contribution includes contributions of Rs. 50.32 Lak:hs made during current year 2.018-19 and balance increase is on account of currency 

fluctuatjon. 

Provision (Non Current) 

Employee benefits obligation 

Provision for Gratuity 

Totar 

Trade Payable 

Tr.ade Payable to Micro and Small Enterprises 

Trade Payab~e to otl-ief tha11 Micro and Small Enterprises 

Trade Pav•ble to Related Party (Refer Note No. 26) 

Total 

Payable to Related Party 

N~tional Stock Exchange of India Limited 

NSE Clearing Ltd !formerly known ais National Securities 

C~eal''ing Col'poratioli limited) 

NSE lfSC LTD 

NSE ITLID 

Total 

39 

AS at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 

(R>. in Lakhs I 

0.55 0 .33 

0.55 0.33 

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

492.94 96.n 
67J.15 390.96 

1,166.09 487.68 

158.67 123.67 

423.30 235.64 

48.83 6 .33 
42.35 25.32 

673.15 390.96 
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14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Deposits (Unsecured· CurrentJ 

Security Deposit tram Clearing Members 

Total 

Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 

Margins From Members 

Other liabilities 

Total 

Provision (Current) 
Provis.ions. for Leave enca.c;hmP.nt 

Provision for Gratuity 

Provision for variable pay and other ,allowances 

Total 

Other Current liabilities 

Statutory Dues Payable 

Total 

Other Income 

Interest income on bank depos.it5 

Employee benefits e•pense 

Sajaries1 wages and bonus 

Contribution to provident and other fund 

Staff welfare Expenditure 

Total 

Other expenses 

Application Fees 

Inauguration Sharing 

Payment to auditor (Refer note below) 

Professional Fees 

Rent· Commercial Premises 

Repairs & Maintenance On Computer systems 

Rep.;irs & Maintenance - Building 

Software eJCpenses 
Electricity expenses 

Director Sitting Fees 

Tr<ivelling Expense 

loss on sale of scrap 

Loss on fixed assets written off 

Other Expenses 

Total 

Note: 

Payment to Auditor 

As Auditor 

Audit fees 

In other Capacity 

Certification Matters 

Cyber Security Audit Fees 

Total 

40 

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 

jRs. in Lakhs) 

332.09 312.28 

332.09 312.28 

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 

(Rs. in lakhs 1 
774.72 

0.38 

77S.l0 

842.32 

842.32 

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 

(Rs. in Lakhs ) 

0.44 0.41 

0.00 0.00 

2.08 2.48 

2.52 2.89 

As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

66.71 

66.71 

For the year 

ended 31.03.2019 

38.23 

38.23 

For the year 

ended 31.03.2018 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

12.94 

12.94 

For the year 

ended 31.03.2019 

For t he ye<i r 

ended 31.03.2018 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

170.23 

4.85 

3.09 

178.17 

For the year 

ended 31.0l.2019 

170.63 

5.18 

8.78 

184.59 

for t he year 

ended 31.03.2018 

(Rs. in lakhs ) 

0.10 14.17 

69.25 

l.93 1.35 

17.33 6.80 

14.81 13.27 
257.62 118.42 

5.19 4.24 
83.89 418.03 
10.37 7.66 
2.51 a.so 

19.86 29.24 
2.33 

6.37 

5.73 5.42 

430.04 688.35 

1.52 1.20 

0.65 0.15 

1.76 

3.93 
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21 Eilmi"I• pt-J •lt•r• 
11.ai.IC oarnlnl ' s:ier .'~<nl" are <Or'n?Ull!'d l:ly djvldiri& prDfit or lo~s attribuhbl111 10 •ciu1tv ~hard1olde~~ ..:if the Comp~nll' b't t ile we1s.hted a._.erali!e nu1T1ber ol "Q111tv 

sh.)re\ 01•,~t.Jnd>ng dufln.g thQ poeriod Hit ComDilt'iY did not have an't potentl.ally d lluUYe 5elurities in eu'lvor ttle perlo(t\ pre~flntf!d 

PC11rticular.11 

Prof .. •ttr1bu1Mi&e to the equity holdefs ol 1.M com~ny u5ed 

in c.kulauna b• sic e.imir-.:.s ~~al"! •od chlu1td urniftCS, 

Vear ended 31 Ol .i 019 Yur ended 31 03 i o1A 

~'!!!..~----~--~--~--~~~~-+~--~--~~~~~~~~~ 
Profit &efOfa Ju (640 16 1~94 26 

~fhe period (Rs in l<ilchis. I 

Wl!!'i11M•d average number af equilv ~hare$ used as tl'le 

denQmlnator In ul~ulornne l:i~?il('.and diluted Hrnlna.s pier 

shut 

22 Leacie • Oper.11tin1 Lei1$C 

Total LHH hvmtnl 

23 Oeputecl Personal Cost 

(~40,:i<i) 

l ,10,41,0!i6 

Yurerided 31.0J.2019 

l' 11 

100 
60 Sl 

13681 
107.IO 

IS!:M .:.!C.) 

6,01,91,llll 

[Rs. In l ekhl I 

PerK>d ended 

31 03 2018 

1111 

ll 91 

1197 

SillilriH , W1.p$ & A.llowan(e~ .alw indude1 th11 deput•tion e-,,.;pens.e.s in rt$pri't of th• ~mployeelo cit ~iltional Srock bchoin1e of lndia L imrtf!d ~NSEILI Jnd NSL 

Clurl11e Llrtiited (fcrmerl.., X11ow11 .u N•Uon~I SK1.uf!iu Clearin~ Corporation L1m1cedl 

Oeflntd (ofltributlon Pliln : 

ProoA~ fwnct· C0tnpany hu contributed R\ 0 31 lllchs (PY IU O 11 l atlt1f tow~ds PIOVident Fund d lHin& lM yur fl'td~ A.Web :n. 2019 to lmp6oyelo 

PfoWilKll f.und Orpnisation 

P~ned ltneflt P l1n ; 

Ttr1e Com p1nv offeri: it$ e-miilo'f('t's. dtrm&d-ben1ftt plan$ tn th.e form of a gf1t1J11t 'f M:'kl'me •s per the applici!illli!' sC.l(IJl(I BenefitJ unQer lhe d e:rinei:J bt 11td11 pl.tn\ 

arr IVe>luilty lla~d on Vt!.llrs cf .service •rid theemployff!'scompensati<1n (gentrtlly lmmediatelyl:lefore reliremt ntl 

(ii T~ .mounts r1coenlsed In tM bala nc:• 1~11 Ind the movtmenu In the net defined benefit ~111tion owr 

the.,,.,. ltt as follows: 

Cum""t s.!rvlce Cou 
Li.itiilitytr11n1ferr!Hl 

Actu1ri1I ~Gain.~)/lo~5ts. on Obllg~tlons - Out tn C.hanaf' in 
· - mn•;- ni 
ActtA,.,) (Gflni)/lou., on Obtiptiol\$ ·~ lo Ch~nc.• In 
~1NOCt..I AHumDltom. 

ll1bill~ 1t the e ncl (If th.r: yur 

C\ltJ~'1tYur 

31.0l .lOlt 

G.11 

on 

OQI 

co 141 

o.ss 

~Ye.1 

31 03 2018 

0 Ol 

0 IS 

10021 

0" 
o.u 

(ii) TtiC!I amount'I reCoCf'lised i., tlif! bllanu shut • nd lhe movemc-nts In tht f11r"al1.1e of phtn<l$5tH Qvrt tht yiur 

areufolloo.ws: 

Pattii::1.1lart 

lnu-ru& Income 

Cootributlo•u 

F.air Value of h1n l$HlS 1t tht end of th• yu r 

Cur,itntVH' 

31.0l.2019 

Pre:v1ou'!. Yl!';,i1 

3 l.03.i'Olii 

P011rtiu,1l•ri P1eviclu.s 'fe~1 ( urrentY4<lf 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-4~--"l~IA~l~.2~0"-"19 _-+.~--"31~0~3~2~00~8'--~ 
F• .. YIW ol oL.lft as.sets as at the end oft.he YotJr 

(tv) a.la.net Shut Recondliat!Dn 

P;irti(Uf.;;rn 

u,,_nM.&/ Cln~rne) Rf'cogt111ed In OCI 

(mployto ContnbutlOn 

CO 551 
IU S) 

Curr"ntYur 
n.Ol.lOU 

0,31 

035 
co 13) 

o.ss 

41 
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75 

B Statement of profit & ~oss (Rs in lakhsl 

(i) 

(Ii) 

liii) 

c 

D 

Net Interest Cost for Current PerWJd 

Particular~ Current Year Previous Year 

U .03.2019 31.03.2018 

Interest Cost 0.03 O.Dl 

Interest Income 

Net Interest Cost for Current Period O.o3 O.Ol 

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
31.03.2019 31.03.2018 

Current Service cost 0.32 0.15 

Net Interest Cost 0,03 0.01 

EJ1penses recognised in the Statement of Profit & loss 0.35 0.16 

h :pens.cs recognised in the Other Comprehensiv~ income 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
31.03.2019 31.03.2018 

Expected return on plan assets 

Actuarial (Gain) or loss (0,J3) 0.17 

Net (lncomel/Expense for the Period Recognized In OCI (0.13) 0.17 

Fair value of plan asset• at the Balance Sheet Date for defined benefit obligations 

Particulars Current Year Prevmus Year 
U.03.2019 31.03.2018 

Insurer Man!ged Funds 

Total 

Sensitivity Analysis 

?al"tic:1.dars Current Year Previous Year 
31.03.2019 31.03.20lB 

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 0.55 0.33 

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Oisoountlng (0.051 (0.03) 

Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of D1Scounting 0.05 004 

Uelta Effect of •I% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 0.05 O.Q3 

Della Effect of -1% Cnange in Rate of Salary Increase (0.05) (0 .03) 

Delta Effect of+!% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.02) (0.0 1) 

Delt a Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover O.Q2 0.01 

Significant actuarial assumptions are as follows: 

Particutars Current Year Previous Year 
H.03.2019 31.03.2018 

Discount Rate 7.48% 7.68% 

Rate of Return on Pian Assets N.A. NA 

Salary Esoalatlon 8.00% 8.00% 

Attrition Rate 12.()0% 12.00% 

Maturity Analysis. of Projected Benefit Obligation· From the fund 

Proiected Benefits payable in Future Years from the Reporting ll-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 

Date 

1st Following Year 0.00 0 ,0() 

2nd Fol lowln~ Year o.oo 0 ,0(1 

3rd Following Year 0,04 0.0(1 

~th Following Yeor O.D7 0.04 

Sth FollowlnR Year 0.07 O.OS 

Sum of Yea rs 6 to 10 0.31 0.21 

Segment Reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company. 

The CODM , who ls responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. has been identified as the CEO of the Company. The 
Company operates only in one Business Segment i . .!. operations compr;se of only facilitating Clearing & Settlement in securities and the activities incidental 
there:to within India or global, hence does not have anv reportable Segments <1s pef ~ndlan Accounting Standard 108 110 peratlog Segments". 
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26 Rejatei:I Party 

111 c:ompliolnc;~ with Ind AS 24 - ''R,lat~d Pi!irtv Disclosures'' . .ao~ nollrit"d under Kule 1 of the Companie! ilndian Accuuntin~ Standards) Rule:., 2015 

and Amendmellt Rules. required dio;ctos.ures <afe gN'!l'I m the table Lt:kiw 

N11mn of tlle related patties ancl •elated piiiirty rela,lon51ifp 

Sr. No. Rel<1ted Parlv 

1 Na tional Slod1. Exchant1.e of lndi;i limited 

? NSE. Cl.eillrin.g Llmlr1HI [Forme-r1y lr.AOWn a:i; N•tion;il Secu.ritie:i. Ck!arl11g 

Corpora1ion Uniit~d) 

N5E IFSC limited 

NSEIT limited (FMmerhr NSE .IT Limited) 

NSDl Datab:ue Mana,Beme nt LimirP.cl 

NS£ Data&. ~natytic:s I imitt-d (Foflnerly known :u [)nth lnte•natlona.! 

Limited I 

NSE lndice-s limitl!d (Forme,ly lcnown as fndia lnd!-x Services & Producu 

ttd I 

NSE l11folerh Services I imited 

N~E IT (US) lni;: 

10 NS£ ol\c~del"T"ly limitd (F<1rmerlv kl'lown as NSF Fdui;:iltion Facllitie~ 

limned I 

li. NSE Fouodalion 

11 Niitloiwl S@Cuflt1es Deoos1to1v lm'llled 

1 :!> BFSI ~ector Skill Co1Jncil or India 

J4 POwt!r Eitcllange lndiiil Umited 

15 NSOL @.(3o\lern.lf"JC.e lnfca.mucture limited Hormetlv k11own ~.s Nat1011"3i 

Securities l)enosironr LimitQdl 

tli Markt!! Simplified ln.dia Limited (rormerly known a,,: INXSTec.tmolo11ies 
Limiteid) 

lT Cornputef Age Management Ser\lices Priyate Limited 

19 A1Jjt1s Networks 

"';1ture of ~el;iitlonstiio 
Thi: Ultimate Holdin11> C.oma.tnv 

HQldillgComp;;my 

~ubsidiarv of Ultlmate Hold1nt.c:ompan" 

ff"llow Sljb:sidiarv of Holdirie Cor't1pd11v 

Vh1matf' Holrlin~ Como.Jonv·s As.sot1ate·~ 
Subsidiary 

Hold mg com pa riv ~ Fellow SY bsidi;jry·~ 

StJbs1<harv Companv 

Holdirie rom pa ny· s Fellow Subsidiary's 

Subsi.i;li;;iry Compal'lly 

Holding company s fellow S.ubsidia,y's 

SUbs.lid1arv C<1m,pany 

Hold11'lg company·s fellow :sub~itJi.uy"~ 

suhsidiar-v Comp~11v 

Ultimate HQldins com!)a11y Subsidia ry's 
'S.ub5idiary Company 

Subsd1ar or UltlmatP t-fo!dinl!: companv 

Ultimate Hold1no Compcmy"s Assoc1att' 
A55ociate of Subsidiary of Ultimate 1-iolding 

company 

A.1::1.01;iate of Subsidiarv of LJttirn::ite f1okling 

(Qm()an" 
Ass.ociatf! <1r Sub:i.idi::ir'!' of Ultimate Holdirig 

company 

As.1:ociate- of Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding 

company 

Associate of Suti.sidiary o, l.IU1m<1te Holdirig 

comp,"\f"IV 

Subsid iary of Fellow subsidia'Y of hQldin.s 

company'~ Su Dsidia'V 

2fl Prof, Samir..: 6arua t P Man~e~r1C1l P1monnel 

)l Mr. Muke.sh A.,cirw.tl i:ev Manaeerial flersorm~l 

IRs. in Lakh.s l 
Nameoftne R.elaletl P'iirty Nat ure of transactions ForPe-riod ende<I For Pl'r1od enr.led 

f>l'S.E UeC11 ini;: Urnited (Formerly known a~ Ni tinna-r 

Securit1o1H Clearing (Ofl)Dr<1tion l irriitedt 

N.11tfo11al .Stock Exct'l.lnge of lnd4a Limited (NSEIU 

N5.E lf-~Ctimited 

NSE l""t.iniite d 

NSDL Oatabclie M;,n11Re ment Llrnj1e d 

J Prof. Samir K Barua 

ContnbuHon ta .... <1rt.h. Fqui~ Sha1 i.: C<ipit.iiil 

Rt!imbur-$ement o f i;:-xpe nsoes for staff on 

deputation Daid / pav.able 

fl.eirriburstmentfor ottle< C;11penses. iricvrre-d 

(incl11aingt.11)1esj 

Outstanding b11lance inclut.led in Trade Paydble~ , 

Reirn.burs.emt•nt of Hpen~e:i. for ~taH 011 

deputa tio n p.;iiJ / paya blP. 

!sitting fees 

ll.03.2019 31 Ol 2018 

S00.00 2,ooo oo 
126.!il B3 '14 

63..87 Jl)6 ·~4 

1\23 .30 llS .64 

ll.H 

0 ... 

l5B,Ei7 ll.3 .67 

"11 Trad e payables incltide OIJt!tandine ii mounts or Rs. Nil (f'reviOU!; Vea r: R~. Nil) (Jndudi111 interest of Rs Nir, !f'reYiOtJS 'fif!'ar Rs, Nil) pillyat.ile to Micro, Sm.:itl & 
Medium lntl"rprr~s. Total outst.a11ding dues to MKro, .Small & M-tdlum Enle rprises haw b~ieon determlfleid to ttu: extent suet~ pa rties hai,oe bel"n ide11tifie d 
on the bi!lsi!i. of lnformoit iOfl avallahfe witti ttie Camp<1nv. 

2tl As at M~'("h .31, 20Jg the Company does 1101 have any p~nding llTig.atloru; whidl w ould im~oi;:I tts financi.al i:io,ition·. 

2Y In accord.in(e With rele11anl vro ... 1s1o ns ofCompanluAct, 20B, the Compamf did not ha...e anv lon1- term co11tn1cts including Uer!vative contr;rcts as a t 
Ma rch 31, 2019 

30 Forthe yur 20llH'9 the comp.;my i.s not requirN to tran!Sofer anv a mount into the ll"l'IM! ~ tor Ed ucillt io n !II Protection Fu11d ;ii~ reciujred under relt!Y<111! 
provisions o f t t.e ( gmp.anies Act, 201~ 

3 l C~p{tll and othe , commitments 

l stlrnatl!d ilmaunt of contract,,: rernaifling co be e )lec:uted 011 capita l ac.count (rlt!( 
of adv.me""!.) am:! 1101 prov1de<l 

Ot ll<:-r C"ommitments 

11.0:1.201g l l .03.20UI 
{RS. lnUlths) 

l38.4 S 

074 

138,43 0.74 
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32 M inistry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA" ) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 has notified the new Standard Ind AS 115 

"RevP.nue from Contracts with Customers· wllich is effective from Apri l 1, 2018. 

The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict t ile transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount 

that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled In exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces ii S· 

)tep approach to revenue recognition: 

·Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 

·Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract 
·Step 3: Determine the transaction price 

· Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 

·Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation 

Under Ind AS ll5, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance oollgatlon is satisfied, i.e. when 'control' of the goods or services underlying the 
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. 

The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 

• Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to eacn prior reporting period presented in eccordance with Ind 
AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimate> and Errors. 

• Ret rospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognl1ed at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch· up approach) 

The Company has adopt the standard on April 1, 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up transition method and acCO<dingly comparatives fO< the year ending 

or ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is expected to be insignificant. 

33 Financial Risk Management 

The Company's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company's senior 

management has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company's risk 

management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks 

and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and svstems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 

Treasury department that provides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and tha\ 
financial risks are Identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Treasury department activities are 
designed to: 

· protect the Company's financial results <ind position from financial risks 

. maintain market risks within acceptable parameters., while optimising returns; and 
· protect the Company's financial investments, while maximising returns. 

The Treasury department is responsible to maximise the return on companies internally generated funds. 

A MANAGEMENT OF llQUIDITY RISK 

l iquidity risk IS the risk that the Company will face in meeting iB obligations associated with iB financial liabilities. The Company's approach to managing 

liquidity Is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its l iabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing thi<, management 
considers both normal and stressed conditions. 

The Company maintains a conservat ive funding and investment strategy, with a positive cash balance during the year ended 31st March, 2019. 

The Company's treasury department regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on·going basis to meet operational needs. 

Any short term surplus cash generated by the operating entities, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other 

operational requirements, is retained as cash equivalents (to the extent required), other highly liquid investments and excess is invested in interest bearing 

term deposits and other highly marketable debt investments with appropriate maturities to optimise the returns on investments while ensuring sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities. 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2019 

Trade payables 

Deposits 

Margins From Members 

Other liabilities 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2018 

Trade payables 

Oeposlts 
Margins From Members 

Other liablities 

Ca rrylng amount 

1,166.09 

332.09 
774.72 

0.38 

Carryin& amount 

487.68 
312.28 

842.32 

44 

Payable on demand 

332.09 

774. 72 

Payable on demand 

312.28 

842.32 

(Rs in lakhs) 

Less Than 12 Month More than 12 months 

1,166.09 

0.38 

Less Than 12 Month More than 12 months 

487.68 
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8 MAHAGCMENr OF MARKET RISK 

The Compan.ys size an.d operations rtsuft in it betns e..-µ<».ed to the follovAt1~ m.afkcr ti:sk!i that arke tfom i ts use of fin.andal imhumcnts: 
• prkc rlsli:: 
• foreign ""cha1lgc fisk and 
• interest race rii;k . 
lh~ .ibovc risks may affect the Comiiany'$ il\co1ne and ~>tpeosts, or th~ v<1lvP of ih fin.inclol instrumfnts. The objectivt of lhc (omp~n'('s man11Re-m1u11 of 

m;uket risk 1, to maint3iri ttiis risk whhtn itctept:.tble par.irneten., while optirn is.ing return,, 

C CAPITAl MANAGEMENT 

r he Company C()n) id@f s lhe f C>lowirig C:Of'TlpO~nc~ oi its 15.lbnc:c Shttl 10 be ma n.ased c:apital; 

TcitAI equity (as shown in the balan~ sheet). - cetainecl profit, sh»tt'I cap1eat 

Thi! C<lml'.l:tn'r rn~nagi!~ itr. capital so as to 1u1.fesuard its .)bility to tontmue .Js a going ('(lnc~rn ~nd to optiinise ret-.irns •n our sharcnotclers. ll\e c;ipltal )t1uc\urc 

of th~ CompJ11y is b(lsie-d on management's JUdR~ment of the appropri(lt~ balancC:1: of key tlem~nts in ofd~r to meet Its 1u,at~"ic aod dny-to-c;'.111\" n~~d~ . W<.: 

'onside-r th11 amount of <a.pil<il in proportion to <isk (Ind man~ge !he capit(lt s.truuur<? ii\ Ugltt ot t l\<inge!. in economic conc:litiCJn) cind the nsk <hl!rllett11)t11.:~ of 

the undtrl";i.J\& ll$5et'~. In Ofdt-r to rn111lntain Of adjust ltie tilpital )tluCturc.. the e:rovp may iidJust tt'ie amount of dividend~ pi'•d to Vi::treholdCfS, return <~pi\::11 to 

:J'\ateha'litrf) or issue new shares 

,.h-e C<1mii•nv aims to tr.,.nsla-t:e profit6bl"' growth to superi-or c1st1 ceniefatioo ttirov~h 11ff'ici1.1nt capital m.<1nagemcni Tht Company's P<>•cv k to rNrJ.C1•n a 
~t<rblc .lf\d $trong c:atutat strutturP. with a focos oo totril equity so as. lo m::tir'lt<iin investor, cr~ditor!. and rnarlcec c:onfldcncc .}f\d to sv!.tain future devtlQplTl.;tnt 

(Ind growth (If its bvsine!.S. fhc Cornpany·s focus Is ori keeping :11trone tot~I equity b<1s~ ti) cosure indept!ndcnce, s"c:urlty, •~ well a~" h.igh financl.al fltxit:ilily for 

potenti<'I futufC bo11owin~, lf rcqtJired, without imp.lcting thf' rlsk p(ofile <ii the Company The Compttny will t.lke <'ppropri:ate slcos in orrter lo M.l•f'lt;>in, or if 

occe~s,_ry 11dJu$t, its capital stru(tutc. T"'e Company is oot subject to flnaoci3I covenanh in any of its signifkant flf'lat1dng 11tre~mCf\l~ 

The mc1n3~t monrtors the renarn on apital ~we• as 1hc tevtt of ~videt'ids to sl\arehOld1ui The <Qmp.any iS rcqulf'td to maintan ~e minim.um nctworth 

ot Rs.SO cro<cs .111d enhance it to Rs.300 c:roA!S at the end of third year co ~e an C:x<h.ln~ •.s per Sf.Bl guideinu.. 

3·t Contingeot llabifity: 

3'l Previo\ls. ycor fisures h~ ... c been regrouped I reclas.sifi~ wher~er necesS~flf. 

As per our r111port <>f tv'!n date attached 

'<>' Haribhaktl g. C..o. ltP 
CharlHe:d Ac<:ooot• nts. 

teAJ Finn •tcist••tjon tlo. t035ZJW I w 100048 

P"'rtner 

~034828 

t'lact: Mumbai 

O<ite : Aprll , 4, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Samlr K Barua 

Director 

I DIN:00211077) 

Nit1n &Ndre 
Ch~ef Fin•n<ial Offi,•r 
PIJ(C': Ml1mb<il 

O~t« · Ap,il 14, JOl!:l 
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M ukcsh Ag.·uwal 

Olrectot 

I DIN:Ol0S48S3 I 

ll.Ol.1019 ~t OUUlS 
(Rs. in Ukhs) 

Viwek Singhvi 

Chief E• ecuti ... e Officer 

,.;, -.)\~ 
6:,.~ 

Chir11 Nagda 
Com~nv Secrittaty 




